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Statement of Compliance

Statement of Compliance
The Hon. JHD Day MLA
Minister for Health
In accordance with Section 66 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, we submit for your information
an~ presentation to Parliament the Report of the Westem Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority (trading as Next Step
Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services) fOr the year ending 30 June 2000.
The Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

CHAIRPERSON

27 August 2000
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About Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol
Services
Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol
Services, the trading name of the
Western Australian Alcohol and
liutilority (WAADA), is an independent
statutory authority established in
November 1974.

functions are set out

in the Alcohol and Drug Authority Act
1974. The Authority is responsible to the

Minister for Health and through the
1Y1inister to the Government.

Next Step's vision is to create the best clinical practice,
to develop successful partnerships and to provide
innovative and responsive alcohol and other drug
services for the community.

Mission

Quality Care
Next Step is committed to quality outcomes through
professional education and training and the
of evidence-based clinical programs.

Continuity of Care

Next Step's mission is to provide leadership in
treatment, education and research to reduce drug
related harm.

Next Step supports coordination and integration of
service delivery by working in partnership with others.

Accountability

Leadersb.ip..ln Service
Next Step demonstrates leadership by:
•

providing specialist evidence-based clinical
services;

•

achieving excellence in professional education and
training;

•

undertaking clinical research and informing policy;
and

•

providing consultancy and support to health and
other professionals.

Next Step uses resources efficiently through quality
management
and ensures that services are
monitored and evaluated.

Compliance with_J.egisJation
The Statement of Compliance with Relevant Written
Law is shown in Appendix Four.

Equity and Access
Next Step respects the interests and views of clients
and professional groups and adheres to the principles
of social justice in response to customer needs and

Nextb-
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Members

Next Step~t;; Board comprises offour
members nominated by the Minister for
Health.
The Board has delegated to the Executive Director,
with certain exceptions, powers vested in it by the
;Alcohol and Drug Authority Act 1974. During the
year ending 30 June 2000 the Board met twelve times.
The Corporate Executive attend Board tTIPP'''''TC
Professor George Lipton
Professor Lipton is General Manager and Chief
Psychiatrist, Mental Health Division, Health
Department of Western Australia. He joined Next
Step's Board in May 1998 and is currently chairman.

He is past president of the Royal Australian and New
Zealand College of Psychiatrists. Professor Lipton has
held academic positions at Melbourne and Monash
Universities and was the Director of Training of Child
Psychiatrists in Victoria. Previously he was Director
of Mental Health Services in Victoria and was the flrst
psychiatrist to serve on the National Health and
Medical Research Council.
Professor Lipton attended eight of the Board meetings
held this financial year and did not receive any
remuneration for his Board membership.
Ms Marian Kickett
Ms Kickett is Manager of Cultural Security in the
Office of Aboriginal Health, Health Department of
Western Australia. She has worked for more than 25
years in Aboriginal affairs including health and

Professor David Hawks AM
Professor Hawks is Emeritus Professor of Addiction
Studies at Curtin University of Technology and is also
Honorary Professorial Fellow at the National Drug
Research Institute. He has been twice President of the
Australian Medical and Professional Society on
Alcohol and Other Drugs and is a member of the
World Health Organisation Expert Panel on Alcohol
and Drug Dependence.

Professor Hawks attended 10 of the 12 Board meetings
held this financial year and received $5,300 in
remuneration.
Mr Russell McKenney
Mr McKenney is General Manager of Graylands

Selby-Lemnos and Special Health Care Services and
since early 2000 has been acting General Manager of
the newly created Metropolitan Mental Health Service.
He was a member of the Metropolitan Health Services
Board and is currently a Director of the Health
Services Credit Union Society and has been a State
Counsellor of the Health Care Association of Western
Australia. He is a past State President and Federal
Counsellor of the Australian College of Health Service
Executives and currently a Federal Counsellor of the
Australian Council on Health Care Standards.
Mr McKenney attended ten of the Board meetings held
this financial year and did not receive any
remuneration for his attendance.

HV'U~"H5' Ms Kickett is a founding member of the Perth
Aboriginal Medical Service and the Aboriginal
Initiatives and Support Forum. She has been a board
member since 1988, and during this time has assisted
in ensuring appropriate relationships between Next
Step and the Aboriginal community.

Ms Kickett attended eight Board meetings this
financial year and did not receive any remuneration for
her attendance.

Nextb-Step~
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Corporate Executiv""'e'---_ _ __
Mr Carlo Calogero (Executive Director)
Carlo Calogero has worked at Next Step for over 11
years. During this period he has been employed in
several senior management positions including
managing the Aboriginal Advancement
Manager of Planning and Policy, Director of Clinieal
Edueation and Training and has acted as the Executive
Director since August 1994.
Dr Allan Quigley (Director Clinical Services)
Dr Quigley has worked at Next Step for over 10 years.
He is the Director of Clinical Services and Viee
President of the Australian Professional Society of
Alcohol and Drugs. He has worked in the alcohol and
other drug field for over 20 years as a clinician,
eonsultant, researcher and administrator.
Associate Professor Steve Allsop (Director
Clinical Education and Research)
A1Professor Steve Allsop is the Director, Clinical
Education and Research and AlProfessor, Centre for
International Health, Division of Health Sciences,
Curtin University of Technology. He joined Next Step
in April 2000 and was previously the Direetor,
National Centre for Education and Training on
Addiction, based in the School of Medicine, Flinders
University of South Australia. He has worked for over
20 years in the drug field, largely engaged in clinical
research and professional education.
Ms Shan Howard (Manager Business Services)
Shan Howard, as Manager of Business Services, has
over 20 years experience in both the private and public
sector. For some 8 years, after completing a business
degree and qualifying as an accountant, she worked for
a large accounting firm in Europe, specialising in audit
and tax. Sinee returning to Australia, Shan has worked
in a number of different challenging management
positions.

Nextb-Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000
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Executive Director's Review

Major improvements to Next Step's
clinical facilities were a prominent
feature during this financial year,
complimented byellhancements to client
services and senior management. Often
significant changes to clinical facilities
and management diminish service
delivery, but due to the dedication of
clinical and cOlporate staff the
disruption to services and clients was
minimised.
My thanks are offered to the Board for their continued
support and guidance over the past 12 months.
Besides performing the duties required as a statutory
authority board, each member has made a special
contribution. Professor George Lipton has encouraged
developments in the new pharmacotherapies, comorbidity and services for young people 18 years and
under. Professor David Hawks has expert knowledge
of the drug dependency area and he has used this
expertise to both challenge and support service
performance and initiatives. Marian Kickett has
stressed the importance of Aboriginal issues,
encouraged the development of culturally sensitive
services that link with existing Aboriginal health
services. Russell McKenney has extensive health
service management and has guided Next Step in many
aspects of organisational policies and management and
in particular, has assisted in improving financial
accountability and reporting.

In May, the Minister for Health officially opened the
new extensions and facilities at the East Perth clinical
site costing approximately $l.3 million. The opening
celebrated a new beginning for alcohol and drug
dependency treatment services in WA. Most
importantly, it has established a major clinical facility,
built to a high standard and reflecting Next Step's
endeavour to provide high quality treatment and
improve clinical efficiency and rapport with our
clients.
As part of the major developments at the East Perth
site, William Street Clinic, a drug treatment landmark
in the Northbridge area for the past 20 years closed in
February 2000. The outpatient services provided from
William Street Clinic were relocated to East Perth and

for the first time the clinical services of Next Step
were integrated onto the one site and this has improved
client access, resource utilisation and clinical
effectiveness.
Next Step recently commenced a youth service in a
renovated house on the East Perth site formerly used
by the Public Health Division. Although the service is
in a development phase at this point in time, it is
nevertheless being well used by young people needing
help with alcohol and other drug problems. The
service will be fully operational early in the next
financial year and consideration will be given to
expand the facility to ensure it can meet demands for
service.
During the year, the Board, in collaboration with the
Ministry of Premier and Cabinet, finalised the
executive management structure. Next Step moved
from the three directorates of Clinical Services,
Research and Policy Development and Clinical
Education to two directorates of Clinical Services and
Clinical Education and Research. Dr Allan Quigley
was appointed the Director of Clinical Services and
Associate Professor Steve Allsop was appointed the
Director of Clinical Education and Research.
The restructuring of the Executive also resulted in an
alteration to the personnel on the Executive team.
Chris Baldwin who acted as the Director of Clinical
Services for the past five years reassumed a senior role
in clinical management. As Director of Clinical
Services, Chris consolidated the performance of the
treatment services team during particularly challenging

Next~
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times and also took the opportunity to reposition the
focus of these services, introduced new services and
also ensured that existing services became more
responsive. Next Step is pleased that Chris Baldwin
will continue to work in a senior management position
within Clinical Services. Similarly, Myra Browne
acted as the Director of Clinical Education and
Training for approximately three years and during this
time, she helped restructure and re-focus the
Directorate. Over the last twelve months, Myra played
a pivotal role in Next Step achieving Registered
Training Organisation status. Registration allows Next
Step to design and deliver accredited training programs
that participants receive credits towards recognised
qualifications. I am pleased that Myra Browne has
remained with the organisation as the Manager of
Professional and Organisational Development within
the clinical education and training area.

The links with the wider health sector are continuing to
expand. In particular, the connections developed with
the newly established Metropolitan Mental Health
Services directed by Dr Aaron Groves is already
showing considerable promise in improving treatment
for people presenting with both mental health and drug
dependency problems.
I would like to recognise the contribution of the
dedicated and professional staff of Next Step. Their
commitment to provide quality, specialist services to
members of our community affected by alcohol and
other drug problems is greatly appreciated.
Next year promises to be an exciting year. There will
be a consolidation of the 1999/2000 advances, the
expansion of our links in the health sector, particularly
with GPs and mental health services and the increasing
involvement of consumers and carers in our services.

Over the past few years, Next Step has developed a
solid partnership with General Practitioners (GPs) and
this year saw the relationship further strengthened.
Over 60 GPs provide methadone treatment to more
than 1400 patients through the community methadone
program. More than 20 GPs are also providing
naltrexone treatment in collaboration with Next Step's
services. The success of this partnership has led the
plan by the Health Department to expand the
involvement of GPs in dealing with alcohol and other
drug dependency problems with the support of Next
Step.

Nextb-Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000
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Program Structure
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Clinical Services

Next Step's clinical services provide
specialist assessment and treatment to
people with drug and alcohol related
problems. These specialist services are
located at Moore Street in East Perth
and at a clinic in Quarry Street in
Fremmltle. In order to provide
continuity of care and appropriate follow
up, formal referrals from other health,
welfare and drug and alcohol services
are encouraged.
Activities 1999/2000

Pharmacotherapy

SpeCialist Assessment and Treatment
Clients attending Next Step undergo a comprehensive
drug and alcohol assessment. Two multidisciplinary
teams consisting of medical, nursing, psychology and
social work staff provide these services. According to
the client's clinical needs, staff provide ongoing
medical treatment, counselling, case management and
follow up.

Naltrexone

During the year, Next Step was funded to provide free
naltrexone relapse prevention treatment for alcohol and
opiate dependent patients. A new treatment program
was developed and most of the clients have been
managed on an outpatient basis. From 1 July 1999 to
30 June 2000, 832 people had received naltrexone.
Methadone

Inpatient Withdrawal Services
This service provides inpatient medical and nursing
care for people who are expected to experience
significant complications during alcohol and other drug
withdrawal. The redevelopment of the inpatient unit
provides three acute beds, four special needs beds and
13 standard beds. During the year, there were 629
admissions to the unit and the majority of these
patients were alcohol dependent.
Group Work
This program provides a range of groups (educational,
skills based and support) for clients and significant
others that reflect best practice principles.
Youth Service
This outpatient clinic provides alcohol and drug
treatment for young people between the ages of twelve
and eighteen years. The services include a
comprehensive assessment, medical and psychological
treatment, counselling, family support, case
management and interagency liaison.

Methadone treatment was provided to 1034 people
during the year and at 30 June 2000, there were 717
clients in treatment. Most of these clients received their
daily methadone dose from community pharmacies. As
at 30 June 2000, 175 clients were receiving their
methadone dose at the dispensary at East Perth.

Community Based Methadone and Clinical
Advisory Service
This service provides training and support for general
practitioners and community pharmacists involved in
the Community Based Methadone Program. At the
end of the year, there were 65 GPs and 272 community
pharmacies providing methadone to 1422 clients across
WA.
'The Clinical Advisory Service is a twenty-four hour,
seven day a week telephone service. Specialist
medical officers provide information and advice to
GPs, pharmacists and other health professionals in
relation to the clinical management of people with
drug and alcohol problems.

Nextb--
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Clinical Services

Pharmacy Services
The pharmacy provides Next Step clients with a
dispensing service for methadone, naltrexone and other
psychotropic medications. In collaboration with the
Health Department and the Clinical Advisory Service,
this service also coordinates methadone dispensing by

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Planned achievements for the next financial year
include:
•

community pharmacies.

the introduction of a management structure at East
Perth with four broad areas of responsibility:
Triage Advisory Services, Clinical Teams, Inpatient
Services and Clinical Support Services;

Clinical Placements
Clinical placements are offered to provide drug and
alcohol training for undergraduate and post graduate
students. Placements during the year included family
medicine and psychiatry registrars on rotation and a
number of undergraduate and postgraduate students in
nursing, psychology and social work.

•

WORKLOAD INDICATORS

Number of assessments

the expansion of the youth service to include
community clinics and inpatient withdrawal
management;

•

the development of an inpatient program for
special needs groups;

•

the provision of clinical support to the new
pharmacotherapy trials; and

•

the development of partnerships between the East
Perth clinic and other health, psychiatric, youth and
drug and alcohol service providers.

2,079

Number of inpatient withdrawal admissions

649

Number of clients treated with naltrexone

832

Number of clients treated with methadone

1,034

Highlights 1999/2000
Highlights for the financial year include:
•

the further development of the East Perth site and
the integration of clinical services has enabled Next
Step for the first time, to provide a comprehensive
range of inpatient and outpatient services from the
one location;

•

an interdisciplinary team approach involving
medical, psychology, nursing, social work, welfare
and counselling staff has been introduced;

•

an increase in specialist psychiatric services;

•

the introduction of free naltrexone to clients of
Next Step and a marked increase in the uptake of
this treatment;

•

the establishment of a specialist youth service for
adolescents between the ages of twelve and
eighteen years;

•

the introduction of evidence-based principles
within clinical practice; and

•

a commitment to clinical research and the
introduction of a new pharmacotherapies research
program involving naltrexone and buprenorphine.

NextbStep~
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Clinical Research and Policy Development

Directorate of Clinical Research and
was established in
main functions are
clinical practice, applied
research, monitoring and
eViltUaU,on. and health systems
development.
The Directorate aims to support
clinicians across the health sector, in the
provision of drug and alcohol services,
by demonstrating best practice and
developing

evidence~based

treatment

guidelines.
Activities 1999/2000
Monitoring and Evaluation
Next Step clinical services are subject to ongoing
monitoring and evaluation to ensure that they are
effective, efficient, and meet objectives. Activities
over the past year include:

•

client satisfaction survey of methadone clients;

•

client satisfaction survey of clients in residential
services;

•

telephone follow-up survey of clients following
discharge from residential services;

•

chart audits of methadone clients to determine
client outcomes;

•

chart audits to determine outcomes of
detoxification; and

•

survey of prescribers of the Community Based
Methadone Program to determine their feedback on
the documentation forms.

Fremantle Clinic - Evidence-Based
Practice Unit

The Evidence-Based Practice Unit based at Fremantle
Clinic provides specialist outpatient services for clients
whose alcohol and other drug problems are complex in
presentation and require specialist intervention. The
clinic is staffed by a multidisciplinary health care team,
including medical officers, clinical psychologists,
nurses and social workers. The clinic offers a range of

pharmacotherapies for people with problem opioid and
alcohol use including methadone, naltrexone,
acamprosate and disulfiram. The Fremantle Clinic
offers specialist psychological assessment and ongoing
multidisciplinary individual and group therapy
programs.
Fremantle Clinic also provides clinical consultancy and
education to general practitioners, mental health
agencies, drug and alcohol and other service provision
agencies within the South West Metropolitan corridor.
The clinic aims to promote the collection,
interpretation and integration of valid and applicable
patient reported, clinician observed and research
derived evidence to inform the development of bestpractice service provision. In addition, a number of
collaborative projects have been undertaken that
include involvement with the Alma Street Centre in
Fremantle and Turning Point in Victoria.
Current Research
Evaluating the health outcomes and service
utilisation of illicit drug users using linked data.
Bartu, A., Holman, D., Codde, J. & Unwin, L.

A collaborative project of Next Step, the Department
of Public Health at the University of Western Australia
and the Health Department of WA. The study links
over 20 years of Next Step's clinical data to the WA

NextlJ!i.Next Step SpeCialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annt;a'l Report 2000
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Clinical Research and Policy Development

Health Services Research Linked Database. The aim is
to assess the impact of illicit drug use on the WA
health care system. It will provide a unique set of
outcome and service utilisation measures for illicit
drug users in this state. "
This project is funded by the National Health and
Medical Research Council.

A preventative intervention for illicit drug using
mothers and their infants.
Bartu. A., Sharp, J., McDonald, S. & Evans, S.

A three year randomised controlled trial will test the
impact of a specifically designed home visitation
program designed to increase breast feeding and
immunisation rates, family resilience, and minimise the
harms associated with drug use in the postnatal period.
This is a multisite study, and a collaborative project of
Next Step, the School of Nursing at Curtin University
of Technology, and Department of Obstetrics and
Gynaecology at the University ofWA. Piloting of
questionnaires and training of research midwives has
been completed and recruitment has commenced at the
Chemical Dependency Clinic at King Edward
Memorial Hospital.
The project is funded by Healthways.

•

fonnal evaluation of the intervention by a
randomised controlled trial.

Community based methadone evaluation.
Marinovich. L., Bartu, A., Corry, A. & Quigley, A.

A study to detenmne key stakeholder satisfaction with
the processes and mechanisms developed in
establishing the Community Based Methadone
Program (CBMP). An evaluation report on the
prescribers and pharmacists participating in the
program has been produced, A survey of the clients
treated in the CBMP has been completed and the report
will be available by August.

Heroin-related non-fatal overdose presentation at an
emergency department.
Bartu, A., Daly, F., Fatovich, D. & Quigley, A

A collaborative project of Next Step and the Royal
Perth Hospital
Department. The aim is to
describe the demographic and drug use characteristics
of patients presenting to an emergency department of a
major health campus over a one year period, assess the
use of naltrexone in clinical management, and develop
evidence-based guidelines for use in emergency
departments. A report will be available later in the
year.

Methadone related deaths in Western Australia
1992-1999.

Methadone withdrawal using buprenorphine.

Bartu, A., Ilett, K., Cook, C, Hansson, R., Plumley, N.,

A double-blind, double-dummy randomised controlled
trial for long-term methadone clients
withdrawal from methadone. The aim is to determine
if transferring clients to buprenorphine and subsequent
buprenorphine reductions results in better outcomes
than those who continue methadone reductions, in
relation to:

Ernst, L. & Popescu, A.

This study draws on data from multiple sources:
clinical, toxicology, forensic and coroner's reports to
describe the characteristics and circumstances of
methadone related deaths that occurred in WA between
1992-1999. Data have been extracted and the analysis
is in progress.

Cannabis brief intervention project.

Quigley, A., Cony, A. & Emst, L.

i) ceasing agonist treatment; and
ii) medium term outcomes post-reduction
(1, 3, and 6 months).

Hancock, L., Poller, M., Corry, A. & Quigley, A.

A study to develop and evaluate the effectiveness of a
brief cognitive-behavioural intervention for adult
cannabis users in a local popUlation. The study is being
conducted in three phases:
•

a review of the literature, consultation with key
informants, development of the intervention and
~l1,."'()rtin,a booklet;

•

a pilot study of the intervention; and

This is a multi site trial involving Next Step, the
Langton Clinic (NSW), the Peel and Southside Clinics
(Qld), Turning Point (Vic) and the National Drug and
Alcohol Research Centre (NSW). Recruitment has
commenced.

NextlJl.Step~
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OOPS evaluation and emergency department project.

•

Corry, A. & Fetherston, 1.

Cowan University, Next Step and the Vietnamese
community on alcohol and other drug knowledge,
attitudes, risk behaviour, and service utilisation.

A study to evaluate the component of the OOPS
program concerned with the delivery of brief
interventions to patients who have experienced an
accidental opiate overdose and present at Emergency
Departments. Royal Perth Hospital, Sir Charles
Gairdner Hospital, and Fremantle Hospital Emergency
Departments work conjointly with Next Step in this
project.

Counselling vs no counselling in naltrexone
treatment.

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Planned achievements for the next financial year
include:
•

publication of a book" Responding to drug related
harm in the work place" edited by Steve Allsop,
Mike Phillips, and Carlo Calogero;

•

conducting a randomised control trial of the use of
buprenorphine in the treatment of heroin
dependence;

•

developing and implementing evidence-based
clinical performance indicators, using computerbased technology, for the Moore Street youth
service;

•

conducting a randomised control trial of the
cannabis brief intervention and the implementation
of the intervention in the broader health and legal

Quigley, A., Corry, A. & Fetherston, 1.
A study to evaluate the addition of a 12 week
counselling program to naltrexone treatment in
reducing heroin use and improving physical,
psychological and social functioning. The study was
developed by Turning Point in Melbourne and has
been adapted for implementation in WA to reflect local
differences in the treatment seeking population and
service provision.

completion of a study undertaken in collaboration
with the University of Western Australia, Edith

Highlights 1999/2000

setting, ego within a general practice context and as
a component of the cannabis repeat offenders

The highlights of the past year include:

diversionary program;

•

•

evidence-based development and piloting of a
cognitive-behavioural treatment intervention and
adjunctive self-help resource for adult cannabis
users;
strengthening the links between Next Step and
Curtin University of Technology, the University of
Western Australia, the Child and Adolescent
Research Institute and Women and Infants

•

producing the final report on the evaluation of the
Community Based Methadone Program;

•

producing a report on the Methadone Related
deaths in WA study; and

•

producing a report on the prevalence and
management of non-fatal opiate related overdose
presentations at emergency departments.

Research Institute, and the Alma Street Centre;
•

consolidating collaboration with research centres
from other States on clinical trials of naltrexone
and buprenorphine;

•

successful application of a Healthways grant to
undertake a randomised controlled trial of an
intervention for illicit drug using mothers and their
infants;

•

successful application for National Health and
Medical Research Council funds to undertake a
linked data study on treatment outcomes of illicit
drug users and the impact on the health care
system; and

Nextb-Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services
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Clinical Education and Training

introduction

Next Step's Clinical Education and
Training aims to ~!lhance access to
quality information and care in
responding to alcohol and other drug
related harm. This is achieved through
the provision of accurate and timely
information, support and consultancy to
drug users, the broad community and a
wide range of professions. In addition,
the services contribute to strategies to
enhance the capacity of clinicians and
organisations to respond effectively to
drug related problems. The Directorate
provides skill developnlent opportunities
and provides consultancy and support to
individuals and organisations in
developing effective responses.

Clinical Education
and Training
Activities 1999/2000
Education and Training
Professional education and training on alcohol and
other drugs is provided to a range of paid and unpaid
workers, for the health and welfare fields and for
people studying in the health area.
There have been a number of education events
developed to meet the needs of health workers,
including Mental Health nurses and Community
Mental Health nurses, Community Health nurses and
rural and remote health practitioners. The section
continued to contribute to the development and
implementation of a number of strategies initiated as
part of the Health Department of WA, Drug Strategy
1999-2003, including the Alcohol and Drug Education
Placement Training (ADEPT), the Graylands
Interagency Dual Diagnosis project, and the State Brief
Intervention project.
The Directorate provided customised training to a wide
range of professional groups, including Family and
Children's Services staff, Community Correction and

Next~
Step~
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Juvenile Justice Officers and alcohol and other drug
workers. A number of the requests for events were for
training in relation to working with young people and
drug use and also mental health issues and drug use.
Next Step is a major partner in the Graylands practice
development project and has supported the project
through the early phases of conceptualisation, strategic
directions and needs assessment. Implementation of
strategies, including education and training will
commence in the next year.
The development and delivery of the statewide
In Touch: School drug management program was
developed in conjunction with the WA Drug Abuse
Strategy Office and the School Drug Education
Project. The aim of this project is to increase the
confidence and competence of school support staff to
respond to students with alcohol and other drug use
issues and problems. A series of Train the Trainer
workshops were presented by Next Step for regional
trainers from all school sectors.
Resource development has been a major focus of the
past year. These resources included a number of
competency-based training packages, the In Touch:
School drug management program, training videos for
General Practitioners and a self-directed training
program on brief interventions for health workers.
Continuing education and training is offered on a regular
basis through the newsletter, Training News. During the
past twelve months the Directorate has offered several
events presented by international and national experts.
All events have been well received and attended,
particularly the series of free lunchtime seminars.

Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000

WORKLOAD INDICATORS

Number of completed events

•

108

....................................................................

Number of participants

2309

Number of completed training hours

725

General Practitioner Alcohol and Drug Support
Program
The GP Alcohol and Drug Support Program
(GPADSP) is a collaborative project that provides GPs
with education, information and support to assist them
in treating patients with alcohol and other drug
problems. An Expert Advisory Group directs the
program with members from relevant GP organisations
and Government agencies. The program primarily
works with the Division of General Practice to link
activities, disseminate information, provide education,
training and consultancy and draws on the expertise
and involvement of GPs in all strategies.

the 14th Mandurah Addiction Symposium held in
February 2000 in collaboration with Curtin
University of Technology, Edith Cowan University,
Murdoch University, the National Drug Research
Institute and the South West Population Health
Unit. The symposium included sessions on policy
and public opinion, community and prevention and
treatment issues;

•

development and delivery of the statewide In
Touch: School drug management program
developed in conjunction with the WA Drug Abuse
Strategy Office and the School Drug Education
Project;

•

Next Step's support for a practice development
project commenced at Graylands Hospital. The
project aims to develop clinical, training, policy
and other organisational initiatives in response to
patients who also have alcohol and other drug
related problems;

•

Regional Alcohol and Drug Support Program

continuation of the Volunteer Addiction
Counsellors' Training Program with 23 participants

This service provides a statewide comprehensive
education, training and clinical advisory support
service for regional health services, particularly in

completing the eleventh program in September
1999. This program runs over 18 months and
involves 75 hours of training and 12 months of

relation to drug withdrawal management. Regional
withdrawal trial projects are currently being negotiated
and funded to enhance the delivery of withdrawal

supervised practice of four hours per week. A
number of other states have adopted this model;
•

services statewide. The project will expand in 20002001 to respond to the needs of metropolitan health
services.

the establishment of a consortium with the
Educational Services Division, New South Wales
TAFE, and the Northern Territory Health Services
Living with Alcohol Program, that was successful
in a tender to enhance education and training of

The program will continue to develop and distribute
resources as appropriate, including a resource manual
for general practitioners and hospital staff which
provides guidance on the assessment, management and
treatment of people seeking withdrawal from alcohol
and other drugs.

staff who respond to the needs of young people
with drug problems;
•

This is accredited for 50% of the Curtin University
of Technology Postgraduate Diploma in Clinical

Highlights 1999/2000
Education and Training
Highlights for the financial year include:
•

Nursing (Substance Misuse);
•

new nationally accredited courses based on the
competencies outlined in the Alcohol and Other
Drug Work National Competency Standards;

contributing to tertiary education programs at the
University of Western Australia Medical School;
and

Clinical Education and Training gained
accreditation as a Registered Training Organisation
(RTO) and this included the development of nine

six nurses from various health agencies
successfully completing the Certificate in Clinical
Nursing (Substance Misuse) offered by Next Step.

•

establishing a part-time Associate Professor
position at the Centre for International Health,
Division of Health Sciences, Curtin University of
Technology.
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General Practitioner Alcohol and Drug Support
Program
Highlights for the financial year include:

•

•

•

monitoring an? support for fifteen Divisions of
General Practice development projects. Sixteen
events were organised for GPs in metropolitan and

Internet site and self-directed packages;

rural areas on a range of relevant topics to enhance
their responses to alcohol and other drug problems;

health sector;
•

three information segments on alcohol and other
drug topics were produced and broadcast as part of
the Rural Doctors Program. A half-hour television

Regional Alcohol and Drug Support Program
Highlights for the financial year include:

•

negotiation and support of the withdrawal trial
projects which commenced in 2000. The
Geraldton Withdrawal Trial project was funded to
commence in July 2000; and

•

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Education and Training
Ensure enhanced access for drug users to quality
clinical care by:
•

developing education and training programs to
enhance the capacity of health workers to better
respond to alcohol and drug issues experienced by

Facilitate access to quality tertiary education in
responding to alcohol and other drug problems by:
•

continuing to develop collaborative education and
training programs with the tertiary sector;

•

delivering the Certificate in Clinical Nursing
(Substance Misuse) as part of the Postgraduate
Diploma in Clinical Nursing (Substance Misuse),
Curtin University of Technology; and

•

•

•

•

organising regular skill development for GPs on a
range of relevant topics to enhance their responses
to alcohol and other drug problems;

•

marketing and delivering nationally accredited
AOD courses as a Registered Training
Organisation;
holding the 15th Mandurah Addiction Symposium
in 200 I and other symposiums during the year. A
symposium on issues related to young people and
alcohol and other drug use will be held in August
2000;

developing a web-based course for rural and
remote public health physicians in partnership with
Curtin University of Technology.

General Practitioner Alcohol and Drug Support
Program
Enhance the capacity of General Practitioners to respond
effectively to alcohol and other drug problems by:

their clients;
•

enhancing clinical and organisational expertise
within the section through participation in clinical
and other programs within Next Step.

development of resources for the use of general
practitioners and hospital staff which provides
guidance on the assessment, management and
treatment of people seeking withdrawal from
alcohol and other drugs.

delivering a Train the Trainer program to support
the provision of safe and effective needle and
syringe services statewide; and

program on alcohol awareness was produced for
Channel 31.

•

conducting the 12th Volunteer Addictions
Counselling Program and explore the feasibility of
conducting a further program to support responses
to alcohol and other drug related problems in the

and
•

continuing to develop the use of flexible learning
methods, such as CD-ROM, teleconferencing,

supporting the development of projects on alcohol
and other drugs established by the Divisions of
General Practice and other appropriate strategies
that enhance the professional development of GPs
in this area;

•

continuing to develop collaborative projects and
partnerships to support GPs;

•

providing events using telepsychiatry linkups for
case discussion following education events in rural
areas; and

providing ongoing support to complete the
Interagency Dual Diagnosis Project at Graylands
Hospital, which is a pilot for a systems/practice
development model in mental health settings;

Nextb-Step~
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•

increasing the number of GPs involved in the
Community Based Methadone Program and
respond to their professional development needs in
relation to working with clients with opiate and
other drug related problems.

Regional Alcohol and Drug Support Program
Enhance the capacity of the health sector to respond to
alcohol and other drug problems by:

diseases, needle and syringe disposal, drug testing in
the workplace, peer to peer support programs and
school project information.
ADIS continues to provide the main service response
to many Commonwealth and state drug related media
campaigns, prevention and early intervention initiatives.

Highlights 1999/2000
Highlights for the financial year include:

•

offering clinical education, training, resource and
policy development and consultancy to appropriate
health services in relation to management of
patients with alcohol and other drug related
problems;

•

providing advice and information on clinical
management of withdrawal problems;

•

providing a liaison service to regional health
services involved in or interested in establishing a
withdrawal management program and other
responses to drug problems;

•

•

establishing further regional withdrawal trial
projects where withdrawal services are at present
limited or nonexistent and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of these projects; and
expanding the project to support metropolitan
health services.

•

responding to almost 24,000 calls from parents,
family members, users, health professionals and the
general community;

•

initiating parent follow-up calls; and

•

continued provision of a service response to drug
related state and Commonwealth Government
campaigns such as Parent Drug Aware, Heroin,
Cannabis and Quit.

WORKLOAD INDICATORS

Number of mailouts to clients

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Planned achievements for the next financial year
include:

Alcohol and Drug
Information Service
Established in 1986, the Alcohol and Drug Information
Service (ADIS) provides professional counselling,
information, referral and consultancy on drug related
matters. This is a statewide service, accessible 24
hours per day for the cost of a local call.
Since its inception, ADIS has received over 200,000
calls demonstrating its ongoing relevance to the WA
community. On average, 10% of total calls originate
from non-metropolitan areas.
Evaluations indicate that the service is credible with
users, their families and friends, the alcohol and other
drug sector, students, health professionals and the
general community. Counsellors are skilled to
recognise each counselling call as a unique opportunity
for early intervention. ADIS also responds to a wide
variety of information calls. Information includes new
treatment initiatives,
issues, drug actions, new
treatment services, agency information, transmissible

•

provision of statewide, confidential and anonymous
counselling and information to over 24,000 calls;

•

participation in a Commonwealth trial of the
Alcohol and Drug Information Network (ADIN);

•

continued enhancement of parent and family
support services in line with the Parent Drug
Information Service direetions; and

•

an update of the WA Alcohol and Drug Services
Directory (1999).

Parent Drug Information
Service
Launched in May 2000 the Parent Drug Information
Service is a new serviee initiative which aims to
enhance support to parents across the state. Available
24 hours per day, the Parent Drug Information Service
provides professional telephone counselling,
information and referral to parents concerned about
their child's drug use.

Nextb-
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In addition, parents can now also be linked to one of
32 trained parent volunteers for peer support,
information and guidance through the Parent
Telephone Support Network.
The Parent Telephone Support Network links parents to a
trained parent volunteer who also has experienced a child
using drugs. Working from their own homes, parent
volunteers take calls from parents seeking support.

Highlights for the financial year include:
•

establishment of a Reference Group with
representation from parent consumers, Next Step,
Health Department ofWA, Community Drug
Service Teams, Local Drug Action Groups Inc and
WA Drug Abuse Strategy Office;

•

expansion of professional support with the
introduction of a follow-up component to parent
calls;

•

establishment of a statewide network of trained
parent volunteers to provide peer support to parents
calling ADIS and the Parent Drug Information
Service;

•

reviewing current resources and developing
additional parent support material;

•

developing a Parent Information Pack;

•

consolidating linkages of the Parent Telephone
Support Network with ADIS and the Parent Drug
Information Service to enhance referrals; and

•

conducting a service evaluation.

Opiate Overdose Prevention
Strategy

Highlights 1999/2000

•

•

the completion of two training programs for Parent
Drug Information Service volunteers, recruiting
32 parents; and
development and production of Parent Drug
Information Service pamphlet, wallet card and
poster.

WORKLOAD INDICATORS

The Opiate Overdose Prevention Strategy (OOPS) was
established in 1997 to encourage and support opiate
users to develop their own strategies to prevent and
manage accidental opiate overdoses.
The project combines professional and peer-focussed
experience within an Action Learning Model and the
flexibility in service delivery, training and general
operations allows for rapid modification in response to
feedback from key stakeholders.
The OOPS Emergency Department Project provides a
full service to Royal Perth Hospital and Sir Charles
Gardiner Hospital and a weekend service to Fremantle
Hospital and continues to be one of the key areas
involving OOPS volunteers.
The Peer Education component of OOPS continues to
provide training workshops around overdose
prevention and management, safe injecting practices
and brief intervention resuscitation. The target
populations for this project are agency staff.
Early indications suggest that:

No. of parent calls through ADIS

2838

No. of parent calls receiving professional
POlS follow up calls

254

No. of parent volunteers trained/graduated

32

No. of calls transferred to Parent
Telephone Support Network (*PTSN)

125

•

a person who has had contact with an OOPS
worker is less likely to overdose again;

•

when an OOPS presence is guaranteed at a hospital
emergency department, people at the scene of the
accidental heroin overdose are much more likely
(75%) to call an ambulance;

*PTSN commenced January 2000.

•

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Planned achievements for the next financial year
include:

and
•

•

reviewing promotional strategies and implementing
a Parent Drug Information Service strategic
marketing plan;

OOPS volunteers appear to benefit from their
involvement in the project in practice, selfknowledge, self-esteem and personal confidence;
OOPS training appears to be valued by external
agencies when recruiting new staff.

NextbStep~
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Highlights 1999/2000
. Highlights for the financial year include:
•

provision of 173 brief interventions in Emergency
Departments following an accidental overdose;

•

recruitment of 38 new volunteers;

•

development and funding for a community-based
brief intervention program (Breathe) to teach
respiration skills to agency staff and opiate users;

•

development of a MentorlPhone Holder Training
Package;

•

participation in various community development
initiatives such as the Cyril Jackson Health
Happening 2000 Community Day;

•

completion of three Volunteer Training Programs of
eight weeks duration; and

•

revision and development of a range of resources.

WORKLOAD INDICATORS

Volunteers trained
Volunteers graduated
Emergency department brief interventio
Number of completed peer and profes
education events
Number of participants
Number of completed training hours

Planned Achievements 2000/2001
Planned achievements for the next financial year
include:
•

development of a training package for generic
health professionals;

•

commencement of the Breathe Project, a
collaborative project between WA Substance Users
Association and OOPS that aims to teach
respiration skills to agency staff, volunteers and
opiate users;

•

development of a Breathe Manual to support the
above training initiative; and

•

further development of resources to prevent and
manage accidental overdose.
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Introduction

•

Business Services aims to support the

The Manager Business Services was appointed for
a period of three years.

peljormance and better manage risk

Other achievements during the year included:

within Next Step Specialist Drug and

•

registration of a new Collective Workplace
Agreement for medical officers;

•

registration of a new Enterprise Agreement for
nursing staff;

•

the development and implementation of revised
induction procedures for new staff; and

•

the development of a Human Resources Strategic
Plan.

Alcohol Services.
Information Technology
The Information Technology (IT) branch supports and
maintains Next Step's information technology
infrastructure in terms of software, desktop computers,
servers and the Local Area Network (LAN)
environment. The branch also provides advice to
management and staff.

_Equal Employment Opportunity

During the year the main IT achievements were:

There were no reported cases of harassment or
concerns raised regarding equal employment

•

the development and implementation of a new
database for the Alcohol and Drug Information
System (ADIS);

•

the development and implementation of a new Client
Management Information System (CMIS), including
the conversion of data from the old system;

•

the development and implementation of a new
Internet web site
(http://www.nextstep.health.wa.gov.au);

opportunity during the past year.

Grievance Officers
Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services
appointed two new grievance officers during
1999/2000.
There were two grievances during the year. One of
these grievances was dealt with by an internal informal

•

the development and implementation of a new
Intranet web site for the dissemination of
information to staff;

decision whilst the other was dealt with by an internal
formal decision.

•

the completion of the Next Step Y2K compliance
program; and

Disability Services

•

the updating of the database used by Corporate
Records section.

Human Resources
The Human Resources Division is responsible for all
Next Step's human resources and industrial relations
matters.
During 1999/2000 a review of the Corporate Executive
was undertaken and resulted in the following changes:

The Disability Services Plan 1999-2001 has been
implemented and is subject to ongoing review.
Next Step's Disabilities Committee meets on a
quarterly basis and provided input into the
redevelopment of the East Perth site to ensure that
access to buildings and facilities was improved.

Public Sector Standards
and Ethical Codes
Next Step has adopted guidelines and processes

•

The Clinical Services and Clinical Research and
Policy Development Directorates were
amalgamated into a new directorate which was
renamed Clinical Services and Research.

supporting the public sector standards in human
resources management. All policies and procedures
relating to the standards were reviewed and revised
during 1998-1999, and endorsed by Executive early in

•

A new Director of Clinical Education and Training
was appointed for a term of five years.

1999-2000. In respect to performance management,
the new policy and procedures are being progressively
implemented.
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policies and supporting procedural instructions are in
Next Step's Policy Manual, which is accessible to all
staff via the Intranet. In addition, all senior staff
within the organisation hold hard copies which are
controlled documents.
Directors and Managers are responsible for compliance
with public sector standards and ethical codes. A
monitoring and advisory role is played by the Human
Resources Branch to ensure that all processes and
transactions comply with the standards.
An assessment of compliance was undertaken in April
2000. The assessment recommended improvements in
checks and controls with respect to ethical codes and
the Standards on Termination, Grievance Resolution,
Performance Management and Temporary
Deployment. These deficiencies will be addressed in
the coming financial year.

Information Ser-"'vCJ.i....
c'""e~s"'-·_____
A review of the Corporate Records has been
undertaken by an outside consultant and a report is to
be presented to the Executive early next financial year.

Planning and Policy
During the year the main achievements were:
•

assistance with the completion of the East Perth
complex;

•

facilitating the sale of 354 William Street; and

•

coordinating the review of Corporate Records.

Energy Sawov in0<I.;J9.....s___________
CJL

Next Step is committed to save energy costs.
Continued monitoring of housekeeping practices
among staff has ensured that these costs are minimised.

BREACH OF STANDARD APPLICATIONS

Freedom of Information
During the financial year ending 30 June 2000 there
were two requests lodged. Both of these requests were
dealt with within the allocated time period.

Breaches found:
Multiple breaches:
Applications under review:

Recycling

Material breaches:
Non-material breaches:

Financia I

Se.Lrv.JLL'lic~e_s'-.- ______

Financial Services is responsible for the budgeting and
financial reporting functions of Next Step and a full
financial report is provided with the Annual Report.

ContractinSl_a.ru:l1!urchasi__.
The contract management function seeks to improve
the effectiveness and efficiency of contracting and
purchasing within the organisation and to ensure
compliance with Government policies and procedures.

ao-'ld.Land Services Tax (GSn

Mindful of conservation principles, paper
procedures continued at all centres. Collection of
waste paper for recycling is in accordance with
government instructions. Recycled paper products are
purchased where possible by Next Step.

Occupational Health and
Safety
The Occupational Health and Safety Committee
actively monitors Occupational Health and Safety
issues within the organisation to ensure that high
standards are maintained for the benefit of all
employees.
Meetings were held in accordance with legislative
requirements and continued to provide a forum for
discussion and resolution of health and safety issues.

The GST wa, implemented smoothly into the
organisation with processes and procedures being
established to ensure compliance with the new Act and
training to ensure staff understanding of the new
requirements.
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Internal Audit

•

upgraded the operating system on our UNIX
servers to compliant version;

•

upgraded the Human Resources and Finance
databases (HRIS and HCARe) to compliant
versions;

requirements. It also reviews Next Step's compliance

•

with the relevant requirements of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985 and the related
Treasurer's Instructions.

carried out compliance testing of desktop
machines;

•

applied latest service packs to ensure compliance
of software in the SOE (Standard Operating
Environment); and

Broughton, and included the following during the year:

•

upgraded database software used in the Records
area.

•
•
•

Customer Focus

Internal Audit continues to focus on working with all
levels of management to improve both the
effectiveness and efficiency of Next Step's services, in
accordance with '~ound business practices and legal

Internal Audit reviews were conducted by Mr Rod

Purchasing;
Contract Management; and
Quarterley Review of Internal Audit Plan Actions.

Next Step has a commitment to ensure the highest
standards of service for its customers at all its facilities

Risk Management
Next Step has undertaken risk analyses and monitoring
through the internal audit function.
In response to Treasurer's Instruction 903 and the
Human Resources Minimum Obligatory Information
Requirements (MOIR) for the Public Sector

and workplaces. It develops services in partnership
with its customers and responds to their changing
needs. During 1999/2000 the Customer Service
Charter was revised as well as the terms of reference
of a new Customer Service Council.

Management Division (PSMD) of the Ministry of
Premier and Cabinet the following information has
been provided by Riskcover in relation to Workers'
Compensation Performance Information for
1999/2000:
COMPENSATION PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Estimated Cost of Claims Incurred
per $100 Wageroll:
Contribution (Premium) Rate:

...........................................................................................................

..

·cc~,.~."

~.~

Rehabilitation Success Rate':
'In calculating the Rehabilitation Success Rate, it is recommended
the rehabilitation outcome is considered a success in the year in
which it is successfully concluded and not the year in which the
program commences. This is because the actual outcome of the
rehabilitation cannot be accurately reported until completed.

Year 2000 Risk Management Plan
In preparation for the year 2000 rollover (Y2K bug),
the Information Technology department:

Next~
Step~

•

verified compliance of service and e-mail software;

•

ensured compliance of BIOS revisions on all
servers;
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Section 42 Estimates for 2000/2001

Under Treasurer's Instruction 953 appropriately approved annual estimates are lobe included in the Annual Report of the
preceding year.

Operating Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2000

COST OF SERVICES
Operation Expenses
Salaries and wages

6817.3

Patient support costs

829.6

Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment

412.6
2518.2

Administrative expenses

1.69.9

Depreciation
Net loss on sale of non current assets

0.0

Non current asset adjustments

0.0

Asset revaluation decrement

0.0

Total operating expenses

10747.6

Revenue from Services
Patient charges

0.0

Interest received

0.0

Donations revenue

0.0

Net profit from sale of non current assets

0.0

Other revenue

324.7

Other grants and contributions
Total revenues from services

Net Cost of Services

14.2

338,9
10408,7

Revenues from Government
Hospital fund

recurrent

Consolidated fund

9800.5

capital

650.0

Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Resources received free of charge
Total revenues from Government

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations
Add: Opening Balance of Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)
Total Available for Appropriation
Add/Deduct Extraordinary Items
Closing Balance of Accumulated Surplus!(Deficit)

0.0
21.3

10471.8

63.1
-615.6

-552.5
0.0

-552.5
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Section 42 Estimates for 2000/2001

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2000 (cant)

Current Assets
Cash resources

3.3

Accounts receivable

0.3

Inventories

0.0

Prepayments

23.3

Total Current Assets

26.9

Non Current Assets

5570.9

Total Assets

5597.8

Liabilities
Accounts payable

131.2

Borrowings

0.0

Accrued salaries

163.8

Employee entitlements

2912.0
3207.0

Net Assets

2390.8

Equity
Asset revaluation reserve

2943.3

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

-552.5
2390.8

NextlJi.Step",",
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Auditor General

To the Parliament of Western Australia
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN ALCOHOL AND DRUG AUTHORITY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000
Scope
I have audited the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the Western
Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority for the year ended June 30, 2000 under the
provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

The Authority is responsible for developing and maintaining proper records and systems for
preparing and presenting performance indicators. I have conducted an audit of the key
performance indicators in order to express an opinion on them to the Parliament as required
by the Act. No opinion is expressed on the output measures of quantity, quality, timeliness
and cost.
My audit was performed in accordance with section 79 of the Act to form an opinion based
on a reasonable level of assurance. The audit procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the performance indicators,
and assessing the relevance and appropriateness of the performance indicators in assisting
users to assess the Authority's performance. These procedures have been undertaken to
form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the performance indicators are
relevant and appropriate having regard to their purpose and fairly represent the indicated
performance.
The audit opinion expressed below has been formed on the above basis.
Audit Opinion
In my opinion, the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the Western
Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to
assess the Authority's performance and fairly represent the indicated performance for the
year ended June 30, 2000.

ow~

DDR PEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
November 30, 2000

4th Floor Dumas House 2 Havelock Street West Perth WA 6005 Western Australia Tel: (08) 9222 7500 Fax: (08) 9322 5664
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Performance Indicators
In our opinion the Performance Indicators described in this section are based on proper records, and fairly represent the
performance of the Authority for the financial year ending 30 June 2000.

Professor George Lipton

Russell McKenney

CHAIRPERSON

BOARD MEMBER

31 August 2000

NextbStep~
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Clinical Services
outcomes
To provide specialist clinical services to improve the health, psychological and social status of people experiencing alcohol and
other drug problems.
Traditionally only key indicators have been reported on. Over the past year, however, the outpatients program has been
expanded to include Naltrexone, Specialist Assessment, Community Based Methadone, Clinical Placements, Pharmacy and
Ni:m-residential Detoxification.

E~cliyeness Indi;;ators
1. Residential SerVices

a. Proportion cQmpleting detoxification

66.6%

61.6%

60.0%

(Derivation: Client management system)

Explanatory Notes:
Successful completion of residential detoxification is a key aspect of improving the health, psychological and social status
of clients. Clients who separate prematurely (i.e. less than four (lays) are deemed not to have successfully completed the
residential detoxification program. (Out of 649 Clients, 217 (33A%) were discharged before 4 days, hence 66.6%
completed detoxification).

b.

Proportion of clients:
- improving in health status

69.6%

41.4%

61.2%

- improving in psychological status

59.4%

51.4%

51.7%

- improving in social status
(Derivation: Audit of 20% of client records)
(Standard error: ( 7.40% at the 95% confidence level)

31.2%

81.4%

21.2%

Explanatory Notes:
On the completion of each episode medical officers provide ratings on health, psychological and social status of clients.
The ratings range from "much worse" to "much improved" on a scale of one to five, with an additional rating "unknown".
For1999/2000 the five ratings were COllapsed to "better", "same", "worse". Data for this indicator was obtained from a
systematic 20% (n=138) sample of clients.
c.

Accessibility/waiting time
(Derivation: Client survey)

45.4%
($3 days)

a

a

Explanatory I'lotes:
Accessibility has been interpreted as waiting time for admission. The data were derived from the client satisfaction survey
conducted in 2000. Accessibility is important to outcomes as it has been demonstrated that when clients have to wait more
than a few days they are unlikely to present for treatment.

d. Patient Feedback mostfy or vel}' satisfied
(Qarivation: Client survey)
(Standard error: ± 5.93% at the 95% confidence level)

91.7%

92.5%

95.1%

Explanatory Notes:
Acceptability and satisfaction with the service is determined by inviting all Clients who complete the residential program to
complete a questionnaire. 263 clients. were admitted during the data collection period and 134 were surveyed,
representing a response rate of 50.9%.

2. Outpatient SerVices
2.1 Methadone Program
a.

Number of clients managed
(Derivation: Client management system)

1034

1183

1446

Explanatory Notes:
The aim is to decrease the number of clients managed at Next Step and increase accessibility of this treatment by
accrediting general practitioners (GPs) to prescribe. As of the 30 June 2000, 65 GPs were prescribing methadone
to 1,422 clients. Next Step supports GPs in this area of practice and treatment has been extended to more clients
in the community.
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Effectiveness Indicators (cont.)

b.

Proportion of clients:
- improving in health status

95.3%

87.0%

98.0%

- improving in psychological status

92.5%

88.5%

96.0%

- improving in social status

95.8%

86.0%

100.0%

- decrease in heroin use

87.9%

64.0%

88.0%

- decrease in other drug use
(Derivation: Audit of 20% of client records)
(Standard error: ±5.97% at the 95"'/" confidence level)

93.0%

51.3%

65.4%

Explanatory Notes:
Successful participation in the Methadone Maintenance Treatment Program is a key aspect of improving the health,
psychological and social status of clients. Three months is considered the appropriate period for clinical reviews
and assessment of the client's condition. The data were collated from a sample of all clients who had been on the
program for three months and longer, and is based on medical reports as part of the three-monthly review of each
client by their prescribing medical practitioner.
c.

Average length of stay

229.79
(weeks)

182.44
(weeks)

149.48
(weeks)

(Derivation: Client management system)

Explanatory Note:
Research has demonstrated that clients who are maintained on methadone for a year or more have better
outcomes than those who remain on the program for brief periods.
d.

Patient Feedback - mostly or velY satisfied

82.1%

84.8%

91.8%

(Derivation: Client survey)
(Standard error: ±4.00% at the 95% confidence level)

Explanatory Notes:
Data was obtained from a survey of all clients who receiVe their methadone dose from Next Step on a daily basis.
One hundred of the 120 clients attending on May 6, 2000 responded to the survey.
Efficiency Indicators
1, Residential Services
Cost per occupied bed day

$621.10

$243.35

$284.31

Explanatory Notes:
Cost per occupied bed day was calculated by dividing total cost of Residential Services by the number of occupied bed
days (n=3,218). The substantial increase in the cost per occupied bed day is a result of 2 factors:
a. For the first line, overheads such as corporate costs were included in the cost of the program.
b. Due to site construction disruption over a period of 2 months actual occupied bed days were significantly decreased.
2.

Methadone Program
Cost per client per day

$2.64

$4.68

$6.75

(Derivation total cost of program divided by total number of clients, by 365).
The reduction in costs is due to a re-allocation of cost centres.

3.

Community Based Methadone
Cost per client per annum

$182.06

a

a

$2,173.85

a

$737.32

a

a
a

Explanatory Note:
Cost of service divided by number of clients (n=1,422).
4.

Pharmacy

a.

Cost of clients dispensed at clinic per annum

b.

Cost of clients dispensed at community pharmacies per annum

Explanatory Notes:
Service costs were apportioned as 50% per output description.
a. Cost of service divided by number of clients dispensed at clinic (n=174).
b. Cost of service divided by number of clients dispensed at community pharmacies (n=513).
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Effectiveness Indicators (cant.)

5. Specialist Outpatients
Cost per client per annum

$1,496.88

a

a

$226.55

a

a

a

a

a

a

Explanatory Note:
Cost of service divided by number of clients (n=450).
6. Specialist Assessment
Cost per assessment

Explanatory Note:
Cost of service divided by number of specialist assessments (n=2,079).

7. Non-residential Detoxification
Cost per client per annum

$2,876.71

Explanatory Note:
Cost of program divided by number of clients retained in treatment (n=146).
8. Evidence Based-Practice Clinic (Fremantle Clinic)
Cost per naJtrexone and methadone client managed per annum

$2,056.47

Explanatory Note:
Cost of service divided by the number of methadone (n=139) and naltrexone (n=247) clients managed per annum.
9.

Naltrexone Treatment (East Perth)
Cost of treatment per client per annum

$1,005.72

a

a

Explanatory Note:
Cost of program divided by number of clients retained in treatment (n=640).

a

= not previously reported
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Clinical Education & Training
Outcomes
The proviSion of information to increase the knowledge, competency and confidence of health and human service professionals
when working with people experiencing alcohol and other drug problems.
Effectiveness Indicators

3.

Clinical Education & Training

Average rating for completed events on:
. Usefulness of training courses to participant's work or study

76.3%

79.3%

82.0%

- Increase in knowledge

63.0%

68.7%

72.0%

- Increase in level of confidence in working in this area

54.0%

59.5%

N/A

- Increase in level of competence in working in this area

59.0%

54.0%

N/A

(Standard error: ±3.43% at the 95% confidence level)
Explanatory Notes:
605 of the 2,320 participants of training courses completed course evaluation questionnaires. The percentages refer to the
proportion of participants who reported that the event was very/extremely useful to their work or study, that they had a high
increase in knowledge of the area covered and a high increase in their level of confidence and competence after the event.
These were the top categories in a five point rating scale. There is a body of research that demonstrates that increasing
knowledge, confidence and competence is associated with an increased probability that a clinician will successfully engage
and respond to the needs of clients with alcohol and other drug problems.
The indicators for 1997-98 were "high increase in level of confidence" 59% and "high increase in level of competence"
53%. These figures, which are presented as a comparison only, were not audited.
Efficiency Indicators
Clinical Education &Training

1.

Cost per participant, per hour of training

$81.42

$27.06

$10.68

Explanatory Notes:
Refers to the total cost per participant (per event hour), including staff salaries, materials, resources and overheads of
providing clinical education and training events for persons working or studying in the health and welfare field.
Costs in 1998-1999 did not include business overheads and only included cost associated with presenter's time. Costs in
1999-2000 include business overheads and the total cost of delivering training.
Opiate Overdose Prevention Strategy (OOPS)

2.

Cost per participant, per hour of training

$48.69

a

a

Explanatory Note:
Refers to the total cost per participant (per event hour), including staff salaries, materials, resources and overheads of
providing clinical education and training events for persons working or studying in the health and welfare field.

3.

Cost per brief intervention delivered by OOPS

$1,026.36

a

a

Explanatory Notes:
A substantial proportion of this budget has been expended in establishing the new seNice. This has included promoting
the seN ice to users and user groups, peer education among drug users, establishing links with key seNice providers,
including Emergency Departments in hospitals, and community based seNice providers, recruitment and support of
volunteer staff and development of support resources. The budget expended in attending each overdose case (n=173)
was $59,187 or $342.12 per case.
Alcohol & Drug Information Service (ADIS)

4.

Cost per call to ADIS
(Derivation: Number of calls as a proportion of budget)

$29.74

a

a

Explanatory Notes:
The cost/call is calculated by dividing Total Expenditure ($712,361) by the number of ADIS calls answered (n=23,955).
Approximately 90% of ADIS time is spent in direct seNice provision. Other seNice activities include mail-outs, responding
to voicemails and maintaining information systems.
a ~ Not previously reported
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Auditor General
To the Parliament of Western Australia
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN ALCOHOL AND DRUG AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000
Scope
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Western Australian Alcohol and
Drug Authority for the year ended June 30, 2000 under the provisions of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985.
The Authority is responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate systems
of internal control, preparing and presenting the financial statements, and complying with
the Act and other relevant written law. The primary responsibility for the detection,
investigation and prevention of irregularities rests with the Authority.
My audit was performed in accordance with section 79 of the Act to form an opinion based
on a reasonable level of assurance. The audit procedures included examining, on a test
basis, the controls exercised by the Authority to ensure financial regularity in accordance
with legislative provisions, evidence to provide reasonable assurance that the amounts and
other disclosures in the financial statements are free of material misstatement and the
evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures
have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial
statements are presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards, other mandatory
professional reporting requirements and the Treasurer's Instructions so as to present a view
which is consistent with my understanding of the Authority's financial position, the results
of its operations and its cash flows.
The audit opinion expressed below has been formed on the above basis.
Audit Opinion
In my opinion,
(i) the controls exercised by the Western Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority
provide reasonable assurance that the receipt and expenditure of moneys and the
acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions; and
(ii) the Operating Statement, Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to and forming part of the financial statements are based on
proper accounts and present fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting
Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements and the
Treasurer's Instructions, the financial position of the Authority at June 30, 2000
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

DDRPEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
November 30, 2000
4th Floor Dumas House 2 Havelock Street West Perth WA 6005 Western Australia Tel: (08) 9222 7500 Fax: (08) 9322 5664
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To the Parliament of Western Australia

Financial Statements
The accompanying Financial Statements of the Western Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority have been prepared in
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, from proper accounts and records, to
present fairly the financial transactions for the year ending 30 June 2000 and the financial position as at 30 June 2000.
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Professor George Upton

Russell McKenney

CHAIRPERSON

BOARD MEMBER

Shan Howard
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER

31 August 2000
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash resources

10

1,058,298

513,626

Accounts receivable

11

7,589

1,320

Inventories

12

9,642

19,765

21,290

24,700

1,096,819

559,411

5,461,249

5,052,495

Total non-current assets

5,461,249

5,052,495

Total assets

6,558,068

5,611,906

Prepayments
Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

13

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

14

88,696

73,926

Accrued salaries

15

173,419

103,645

Employee entitlements

16

754,219

649,588

1,016,334

827,159

2,004,387

1,899,491

Total non-current liabilities

2,004,387

1,899,491

Total liabilities

3,020,721

2,726,650

Net assets

3,537,347

2,885,256

2,994,488

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee entitlements

16

EQUITY
Asset revaluation reserve

17a

2,943,305

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

17b

594,042

(109,232)

3,537,347

2,885,256

Total equity

NextbNext Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000

33

Step~

Financial Statements

Operating Statement for the year ended 30 June 2000

COST OF SERVICES
Operating Expenses

6,822,623

5,863,283

554,663

665,558

76,574

67,742

712,237

278,176

Patient transport

439

28

Communications

172,923

166,976

Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment

443,877

416,333

1,125,725

1,082,302

Salaries and wages
Superannuation
Workers compensation insurance
Patient support costs

2

Other administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation

3

183,526

172,939

Net loss on disposal of non-current assets

4

74,555

19,895

5

2,007

0

698,180

0

10,867,329

8,733,232

Non-current asset adjustments
Asset revaluation decrement

17a

Total operating expenses

Revenues from Services

Commonwealth grants and contributions

6

45,872

13,683

Net profit on disposal of non-current assets

4

50,000

1,000

Other operating revenue

7

202,921

310,141

298,793

324,823

10,568,536

8,408;4"09

Total revenues from services

Net cost of services

18

Revenues from Government

Hospital Fund - recurrent subsidy

8

9,716,920

7,g5B,900

Consolidated Fund - capital appropriation

8

908,237

0

67,000

0

18,000

26,640

10,710,157

7,985,540

141,621

(422,869)

(109,232)

313,637

561,653

0

313,637

0

594,042

(109,232)

Grant - Other State Government
Resources received free of charge

9

Total revenues from government

Change in net assets resulting from operations

Opening balance of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Transfers (to)/from reserves

Closing balance of accumulated surplus/(deficit)

17b
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Statement of Cashflows for the year ended 30 June 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM GOVERNMENT
9,716,920

Recurrent subsidy

67,000

Grant - Other State Government
Net cash provided by government

9,783,920

Utilized as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments
Payments to suppliers

(2,878,750)

Payments to employees

(6,590,234)

(2,645,36&)

(9,468,984)

Receipts
Commonwealth grants and contributions

45,872

Other receipts

202,639
248,511

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

(9,220,473)

18

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of non-current assets
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets

13

(668,785)

4

650,010

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

(18,775)

(9,239,248)

TOTAL CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AND INVESTING

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

544,672

Cash at the beginning of the reporting period

513,626

Cash at the end of the reporting period

10

1,058,298
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2000
Note 1. Statement of Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated
these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year.

(a)

General
i) The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.
ii) The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer's
Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format
and wording. The Financial Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative provisions
goveming the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards and
UIG Consensus Views. The modifications are intended to fulfil the requirements of general application to the public
sector, together with the need for greater disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements.
If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that
modification and where practicable, the resulting financial effect are disclosed in individual notes to these financial
statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention, with the exception of certain non-current assets which have been stated at valuation as provided by the
Valuer Generals' Office (see note 13). Additions to non-current assets since valuation are stated at cost.

(b)

Valuation of Non-current Assets
The Authority has adopted a policy of revaluation of all land and buildings at five yearly intervals. Revaluation
increments have been taken to the asset revaluation reserve. Decrements have been offset against previous
increments (if any) relating to the same class of assets and the balance (if any) charged against operating profits.
The valuations of land and buildings are in accordance with an independent valuation, undertaken by the Valuer
Generals' Office in Westem Australia and reflect current market value.

(c)

Acquisition of Non-current Assets
Items have been included as property, plant and equipment if the cost of acquisition is $1,000 or more and the useful
life is expected to be two years or more.

(d)

Leases
The Authority has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements for the rent of buildings and motor vehicles
where the lessors effectively retain all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the items. Equal instalments of
the lease payments are charged to the operating statement over the lease term as this is representative of the pattem
of benefits to be derived from the leased items.
The Authority has no contractual obligations under finance leases.

(e)

Depreciation of Non-current Assets
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner that
reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.
Depreciation is provided for on the reducing balance, using rates which are reviewed annually. Useful lives for each
class of depreciable assets are:
Buildings
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33 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Furniture and fittings

7 to 26 years

Other plant and equipment

3 to 30 years
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(f)

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days
from the date of recognition.
Collectability of accounts receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are
written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubts as to collection exists.

(g)

Inventories
Inventories are valued on a weighted average cost basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(h)

Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Authority becomes obliged to make future
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. Accounts payable are generally settled within 30 days.

(i)

Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last
pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.

(j)

Employee Entitlements
i) Annual and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual leave represents the amount which the Authority has a present obligation to pay resulting
from employees' services up to the reporting date. The liability has been calculated on current remuneration rates
and includes related on-costs.
The liability for long service leave represents the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given, when assessing expected
future payments, to expected future wage and salary levels including related on-costs, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using interest rates attached to
national govemment securities to obtain the estimated future cash flows.
The methods of measurement of the liabilities are consistent with the requirements of Australian Accounting
Standard AAS 30 "Accounting for Employee Entitlements".

ii) Superannuation
Staff may contribute to the Superannuation and Family Benefits Act Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme
now closed to new members, or to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme
now also closed to new members. All staff who do not contribute to either of these schemes become noncontributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation fund complying with the
Commonwealth Government's Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.
The liability for superannuation charges incurred under the Superannuation and Family BenefitsAct pension
scheme are provided for at the reporting date.
The liabilities for superannuation charges under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and West State
Superannuation Scheme are assumed by the Treasurer.
The note disclosure required by paragraph 51 (e) of AAS30 (being the employer's share of the difference between
employees' accrued superannuation benefits and the attributable net market value of plan assets) has not been
provided. State Scheme deficiencies are recognised by the State in its whole of government reporting. The
Government Employees Superannuation Board's records are not structured to provide the information for the
Accountable Authority. Accordingly, deriving the information for the Accountable Authority is impractical under
current arrangements, and thus any benefits thereof would be exceeded by the cost of obtaining the information.
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(k)

Recognition of Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods, disposal of other assets and the rendering of services, is recognised when the
Accountable Authority has passed control of the goods or other assets or has delivered the services to the customer.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis.

(I)

Appropriations
Appropriations in the nature of revenue, whether recurrent or capital, are recognised as revenues in the reporting
period in which the Accountable Authority gains control of the appropriated funds. Appropriations that are repayable by
the Accountable Authority to the Treasurer are recognised as liabilities.

(m)

Resources Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Value
Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as revenues
and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

(n)

Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Net fair values of financial instruments are determined on the following bases:
•

Monetary financial assets and liabilities not traded in an organised financial market - cost basis carrying amounts of
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accruals (which approximates net market value).

(0)

Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be comparable with the figures presented in the
current reporting period.

Note 2. Patient support costs
Medical supplies and services

491,700

91,297

Domestic charges

17,457

17,591

Fuel, light and power

97,374

62,182

Food supplies

57,547

58,560

Purchase of external services

48,159

48,546

712,237

278,176

Buildings

46,175

46,075

Computer equipment and software

96,950

95,023

Furniture and fittings

16,106

14,724

Other plant and equipment

24,295

17,117

183,526

172,939

Total

Note 3. Depreciation and amortisation

Total
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Note 4. Net profit/(Ioss) on disposal of non-current assets

a)

Proceeds on sale of non-current assets

Proceeds were received for the sale of non-current assets
during the reporting period as follows:

b)

Received as cash

650,010

1,000

Gross proceeds on sale of non-current assets

650,010

1,000

Buildings

43,813

1,467

Computer equipment and software

13,490

15,217

Furniture and fittings

16,089

2,044

1,163

1,167

74,555

19,895

50,000

0

0

1,000

50,000

1,000

Loss on disposal of non"current assets:

Other plant and equipment
Total
c)

Profit on disposal of non-current assets:

Land
Computer equipment and software
Total

Note 5. Non-current asset adjustments
Two computers were listed in the asset register on one asset number. An adjustment of $2,004 was made to rectify the error.
In addition, adjustments were made due to rounding up of figures for Furniture and Fittings, other plant and equipment.
Amendments to each class of assets were made as follows:
Computer equipment and software

o

2,004
(1 )

o

4

o

2,007

o

Other grants

45,872

13,683

Total

45,872

13,683 :

Furniture and fittings
Other plant and equipment
Total

Note 6. Commonwealth grants and contributions

Note 7. Other operating revenue
Medical Reports/Certificates
Recoveries

390

775

98,476

89,343

Other Revenue

104,055

220,022

Total

202,921

310,141
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Note 8. Government appropriations
The Accountable Authority is funded through the Hospital Fund on a recurrent basis. Funding for specific capital expenditure is
obtained through the Consolidated Fund.

Hospital Fund - recurrent subsidy
Consolidated Fund - capital appropriation

Total appropriations revenue (Operating Statement):

9,716,920

7,958,900

908,237

o

10,625,157

7,958,900

(908,237)

o

Items paid directly by the Health Department of WA for the Accountable Authority
are not included in the Statement of Cash Flows:
- capital subsidy

Total appropriations received as cash

9,716,920

7,958,900

Funding Arrangements:
Government funding for the operational costs of the Accountable Authority is based on an annual level of funding for a
specified level of activity. This funding is then advanced on a monthly basis as per an agreed cash payment schedule
calculated on seasonal trends and scheduled activity. Adjustments to funding are made during the year based upon actual
activity levels. Receipts (other than donations) are offset against recurrent funding.
Major capital and other special purpose funding is determined annually and is mainly funded on a recoup basis, as per the
operational funding methodology above or purchased directly by the Health Department on behalf of the Accountable Authority.

Note 9. Resources received free of charge
Resources received free of charge has been determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies.
Office of the Auditor General - Audit services

18,000

18,000

Treasury

3,140

Department of Contract and Management Services

5,500

Total

18,000

26,640

1,859

3,260

Cash at bank - general

1,056,439

510,366

Total

1,058,298

513,626

Note 10. Cash resources
Cash on hand

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, cash advances and cash at bank. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of
Financial Position as above.
Cash at bank is held at a major banking institution. No monies are invested with other organisations.
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Note 11. Accounts receivable
Other receivables

7,589

1,320

Total accounts receivable for goods and services supplied

7,589

1,320

o

o

7,589

1,320

Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total
(i)

Significant terms and conditions:
Accounts receivable are required to be settled within 30 days.

(ii)

Credit risk exposure:
The Accountable Authority does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.

(iii) Net fair values:
The Accountable Authority considers the carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate their net fair values.

Note 12. Inventories
Pharmaceutical stores

9,642

19,765

Total

9,642

19,765

Valuation at April 2000

3,060,000

0

Valuation at June 1996

0

1,980,000

Valuation at September 1997

0

1,050,000

3,060,000

3,030,000

Valuation at April 2000

1,680,000

0

Valuation at June 1996

0

915,000

Valuation at September 1997

0

840,000

Note 13. Property, plant and equipment
Land

Total
Buildings

At cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total

82,036

91,098

(26,404)

(356,505)

1,735,632

1,489,593

723,583

828,580

(399,920)

(553,302)

323,663

275,278

At cost

215,770

210,766

Less accumulated depreciation

(72,249)

(81,575)

Total

143,521

129,191

Computer equipment and software

At cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total
Furniture and fittings
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Note 13. Property, plant and equipment (cont.)

Other plant and equipment
At cost

421,454

349,644

Less accumulated depreciation

(223,021)

(221,211)

Total

198,433

128,433

5,461,249

5,052,495

1,445,825

221,259

Total of property, plant and equipment
Payments for non-current assets
Payments were made for purchases of non-current assets during the
reporting period as follows:
Gross payments for purchases of non-current assets
Payments made by HDWA

777,040

Net payment for purchases of non-current assets

668,785

221,259

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The valuation of freehold land, land improvements and buildings was performed in April 2000 in accordance with an
independent valuation by the Valuer General's Office. The valuation has been performed on the basis of current market
buying prices. The valuation was made in accordance with a regular policy of revaluation every five years.

Note 14. Accounts payable
Accounts payable for goods and services received

88,696

73,926

The Accountable Authority considers the carrying amounts of accounts payable approximate their net fair values.

Note 15. Accrued salaries
Amounts owing for accrued salaries

173,419

103,645

Accrued salaries are settled within a few days of the end of the reporting period. The Accountable Authority considers that
the carrying amount of accrued salaries is equivalent to the net fair value.

Note 16. Employee entitlements
Current liabilities:
Liability for annual leave

436,968

380,443

Liability for long service leave

317,251

269,145

Total

754,219

649,588

405,173

358,787

Liability for superannuation

1,599,214

1,540,704

Total

2,004,387

1,899,491

2,758,606

2,549,079

Non-current liabilities:
Liability for long service leave

Total employee entitlements

The superannuation liability has been established from data supplied by the Government Employees Superannuation Board.
The Accountable Authority considers the carrying amount of employee entitlements approximates the net fair value.
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Note 17a. Asset revaluation reserve

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Revaluation Increments during the year
Revaluation Decrements taken to reserve during the year
Balance at end of the year

2,994,488

2,994,488

510,470

0

(561,653)

0

2,943,305

2,994,488

480,000

0

30,470

0

510,470

0

Buildings

698,180

o

Total

698,180

o

Revaluation increments during the year were in respect of:
Land
Buildings
Total

Revaluation decrements during the year were in respect of:

Increments have been taken to the asset revaluation reserve.
Decrements have been offset against previous increments (if any) relating to the same class of assets and the balance (if any)
charged against operating results.

Note 17b. Transfer from reserves
Revaluation decrements reverse prior year increments in respect of:
(a)

Assets transferred in 1994/95 years to HDWA not previously adjusted

(b)

Assets sold in current year:
Land
Building
Total

80,525

0

450,000

0

31,128

0

561,653

0

Note 18. Reconciliation of net cash flows used in operating activities to net cost of services
Net cash used in operating activities (Cash Flow Statement)

(9,220,473)

(8,036,721)

6,269

(1,268)

Increase/(decrease) in inventories

(10,123)

10,048

Increase/(decrease) in prepayments

. (3,410)

(4,746)

Decrease/(increase) in accounts payable

(14,770)

40,904

Decrease/(increase) in accrued salaries

(69,774)

0

Increase/(decrease) in accounts receivable

Decrease/(increase) in employee entitlements

(209,527)

(198,091 )

Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000

43

Next~
Step~

Financial Statements

Note 18. Reconciliation of net cash flows used in operating activities to net cost of services (cont.)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation

(183,526)

(172,939)

ProfitJ(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

(24,555)

(18,895)

Other expenses paid by Health Department of WA

(86,197)

0

(2,007)

0

(698,180)

0

(18,000)

(26,640)

0

0

34,299

(1,055)

Non-current asset adjustments
Asset revaluation decrements
Resources received free of charge
Increase in net assets arising from integration
Other

Net cost of services after abnormal items (Operating Statement)

(10,568,536)

(8,408,409)

Note 19, Remuneration of accountable authority and senior officers;
The total fees, salaries and other benefits received or due and receivable
for the reporting period, by members of the Accountable Authority, from the
Statutory Authority or any related body,
The total fees, salaries and other benefits received or due and receivable
for the reporting period by Senior Officers other than members of the
Accountable Authority, from the Statutory Authority or any related body,

2,650

2,650

502,435

426,928

The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total of fees,
salaries and other benefits received, or due and receivable, for the
reporting period, falls within the following bands:

1999/00
$0 -

1998/99

$10,000
Total

The number of Senior Officers (other than members of the Accountable Authority), whose total of fees, salaries and other
benefits received, or due and receivable, for the reporting period, falls within the following bands:

$10,000

$20,000

$60,001

$70,000

$70,001

$80,000

$80,001

$90,000

$90,001

$100,000

$100,001

$110,000

$130,001

$140,000

o
o

o
6

Total
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Note 20. Retirement benefits
In respect of members of the Accountable Authority, the following amounts were paid or became payable for the reporting
period:

Notional contributions to Gold State Superannuation

Contributions to other superannuation funds

o
o

o
o

Total

o

o

Scheme and West State Superannuation Scheme

In respect of Senior Officers other than members of the Accountable Authority, the following amounts were paid or became
payable for the reporting period:
Notional contributions to Gold State Superannuation
Scheme and West State Superannuation Scheme

44,819

51,231

Total

44,819

51,231

Numbers of Senior Officers presently employed who are members of the Superannuation and Family Benefits Act Scheme:

o

o

Accountable Authority

o

o

Total

o

o

18,000

18,000

Members of the Accountable Authority
Senior officers other than members of the

Note 21. Remuneration of auditor
Notional fees for external audit services provided by the Auditor General are:
(Refer note 9)
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Note 22. Explanatory statement
a) Significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for the financial year and revenues and
expenditures for the immediately preceding financial year.
Details and reasons for significant variations between actual resulis and the corresponding items of the preceding year are
detailed below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $50,000.

1. Salaries

6,822,623

5,863,283

959,340

554,663

665,558

(110,895)

712,237

278,176

434,061

74,555

19,895

54,660

689,180

0

689,180

50,000

1,000

49,000

9,716,920

7,958,900

1,758,020

908,237

0

908,237

Payments to visiting medical officers and
staff numbers in Clinical Research, Policy &
Development increased as a result of increases
in both activity levels and contract rates.
2.

Superannuation
The decrease is due to a once lump sum paid in
1998/99 to the Government Employees
Superannuation Board not required in 1999/00.

3.

Patient Support Costs
Increased as a result of the introduction of Naltrexone Drugs.

4.

Net loss on sale of non-current assets
Due to the loss on sale of building, furniture
and fittings - William Street Clinic.

5.

Asset Revaluation Decrement
Due to the revaluation of buildings.

6.

Net Profit on disposal of non current assets
Due to the sale of William Street Clinic.

7.

Hospital Fund - Recurrent
This is the total contract adjustments received
from the Health Department during the year of
which 1.2 million was for the Naltrexone Project

8.

Consolidated Fund - Capital
Capital costs rose significantly due to alterations
and improvements done at the East Perth site,
due to increased outpatient - based services

NextbStep~
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b) Comparison of estimates and actual results ( Section 42 )
Section 42 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act requires statutory authorities to prepare annual budget estimates.
Treasurer's Instructions 945 requires an explanation of significant variations between the estimates and the actual results.
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% of the budget or $50,000.

1.

Salaries and Wages

5,491,000

6,822,623

1,331,623

271,000

712,237

441,137

1,982,700

2,703,059

720,359

234,300

443,877

209,577

o

74,555

74,555

o

50,000

50,000

103,500

202,921

99,421

o

67,000

67,000

7,936,900

9,716,920

1,780,020

o

908,237

(908,237)

Payments to visiting medical officers and staff members in
Clinical Research, Policy and Development increased as a
result of increases in both activity levels and contract rates.
2.

Patient Support Costs
This is due mainly to the increase in client numbers using
the naltrexone drug.

3.

Administrative Expenses
Increase is the result of an Asset Revaluation Decrement
on buildings revalued during the year.

4.

Repairs, Maintenance and Consumable Equipment
Costs associated with the refurbishment of the East Perth site.

5.

Net loss on Sale of Non-Current Assets
Due to the loss on sale of building, furniture and fittings
- William Street Clinic.

6.

Net Profit from Sale of Non-Current Assets
This is due to the sale of William Street Clinic.

7.

Other Revenue
Increase as a result of higher than anticipated activity levels.

8.

Grant - Other State Government
Grant received from Family and Children's Services not
included in estimates.

9.

Recurrent subsidy
This is the total contract adjustments received from the
Health Department during the year of which 1.2 million
was for the Naltrexone Project.

10. Capital appropriation
Major building works for the East Perth site.

Note 23. Related bodies
A related body is a body which receives more than half its fUnding and resources from the Accountable Authority and is subject
to operational control by the Accountable Authority. Related bodies are generally government agencies which have no financial
administration responsibilities.
The Accountable Authority had no related bodies during the reporting period.
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Note 24. Affiliated bodies
An affiliated body is a body which receives more than half its funding and resources from the Accountable Authority and is not
subject to operational control by the Accountable Authority Service. Affiliated bodies are generally non-government agencies,
such as charitable, welfare and community interest groups which receive financial support from government
The Accountable Authority had no affiliated bodies during the reporting period.

Note 25. Losses of public moneys and public or other property

o

o
o
o

Not later than one year

23,373

29,964

Later than one year, and not later than five years

13,999

5,294

o

o

37,372

35,258

Losses of computers through theft

5,247

Less recoveries of losses

5,247

Net losses

Note 27. Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities.

Note 28. Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments.

Note 29. Events Occurring After Balance Date
No events impacting on the Financial Statement occurred after the balance date.

Note 30. Expenditure commitments
Operating lease commitments:
Commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Later than five years
Total
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Note 31. Additional financial instruments disclosures
a) Interest rate risk exposure
The following table details the Authority's exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date:

Financial Assets

1,058

1,058

8

8

21

21

1,087

1,087

Accounts payable

89

89

Accrued salaries

173

173

2,759

2,759

3,021

3,021

(1,934)

(1,934)

Non interest bearing

0.00%

Accounts receivable
Prepayments

Financial Liabilities

Employee entitlements

Net financial assets (liabilities)
As at 30th June 2000
Financial Assets

0;00%

Non interest bearing

514

514

1

Accounts receivable

25

25

540

540

Accounts payable

74

74

Accrued salaries

.104

104

2,549

2,549

2,727

2,727

(2,187)

(2,187)

Prepayments

Financial Liabilities

Employee entitlements

Net financial assets (liabilities)

b) Credit risk exposure
All financial assets are unsecured. Amounts owing by other govemment agencies are guaranteed and therefore no credit risk
exists in respect of those amounts. In respect of other financial assets the carrying amounts represent the Accountable
Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to those assets.
There were no amounts owing by other government agencies.
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Note 32. Authority service output information

Salaries and wages
Superannuation

1;507,270

1,104,500 5,315,353 4,758,783

0

0

6,822,623

5,863,283

114;310

186,069

440,353

479,489

0

0

554,663

665,558

14,731

11,531

61,843

56,211

0

0

76,574

67,742

3,321

2,160

708,916

276,016

0

0

712,237

278,176

Patient transport

3

0

436

28

0

0

439

28

Communications

63,752

52,996

109,171

113,980

0

\)

172,923

1'66,976

Repairs, maintenance and
consumable equipment

37,829

38,549

406,048

377,784

0

0

443,877

416,333

Other administrative expenses

469,800

433,429

655,925

648,873

0

0

1,125,725

1,082,302

Depreciation and amortisation

46,042

49,965

137,484

122,974

0

0

183,526

172,939

2,576

9,349

71,979

10,546

0

0

74,555

19,895

Non-current asset adjustments

0

0

2,007

0

0

0

2,007

0

Asset revaluation decrement

0

0

69B,180

0

0

0

698,180

0

1,888,548 8,607,695 6,844,684

0

0

10,867,329

8,733,232

Workers' compensation insurance
Patient support costs

Net loss on disposal of non-current
assets

Total Operating Expenses

2,259,634

Revenues from Services
Commonwealth grants and
contributions

0

0

45,872

13,683

0

0

45,872

13,683

Net profit on disposal of
non-current assests

0

200

50,000

800

0

0

50,000

1,000

Other operating revenue

79,825

177,266

123,096

132,874

0

0

202,921

310,140

79,825

177,466

218,968

147,357

0

0

298,793

324,823

Total revenues from services

Net cost of services

2,179,809

1,711,082 8,388,727 6,697,327

°

0

10,568,536

8,408,409

2,255,400

2,535,418 7,461,520 5,423,482

0

0

9,716,920

7,958,900

Revenues from Govemment
Hospital Fund - recurrent subsidy
Consolidated Fund capital appropriation

0

0

908,237

0

0

0

908,237

0

67,000

0

0

0

0

0

67,000

0

Resources received free of charge

6,000

6,660

12,000

19,980

0

0

18,000

26,640

Total Revenues from Government

2,328,400

2,542,078

8,381,757 5,443,462

0

0

148,591

830,996

°

0

Grant - Other State Government

Change in net assets resulting
from operations

(6,970) (1,253,865)

Nextb--

Step~

50

Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services - Annual Report 2000

10,710,157 7,985,540

141,621

(422,869)

Outputs constitute industry segments for the purpose of Australian Accounting Standard AAS16 "Financial Reporting by
Segments". Outputs as defined in the budget papers are as follows:
Prevention and Promotion

This output provides services that aim to prevent disease and improve the health of the population through prevention and
promotion programs. The objective of prevention and promotion services is to improve the health of Western Australians by
reducing the incidence of preventable disease, injury, disability and premature death. Within the prevention and promotion
services different health conditions lend themselves to greater emphasis on some intervention strategies than others. For
example, where the causes of a disease are known and the risks of developing the disease can be reduced in a cost-effective
way, there will be an emphasis on prevention strategies ego smoking reduction campaigns. The activities from this output
include:
•
•

a confidential 24 hour telephone counselling, information, consultancy and advisory service;
leadership in the development and delivery of professional education, training and resources relating to alcohol and other
drug issues for workers and volunteers; and

•

peer support, brief interventions, education and referral for people who have been discharged from major teaching
hospitals emergency departments following an accidental opiate overdose.

Diagnosis and Treatment

This output provides services in the acute care diagnosis and treatment of patients include emergency services, ambulatory or
outpatient services and those people who are admitted to hospitals as inpatients. The objective for the acute care diagnosis
and treatment activities is to improve health of Western Australians by restoring the health of people with acute illness.
Treatments are provided through a network of hospital and clinical services. The activities from this output include:
•

a statewide specialist medical withdrawal service providing clinical detoxification;

•

a 21 bed residential unit on the East Perth site;

•

a comprehensive assessment of clients who present with alcohol and other drug problems and have significant physical,
mental health and social issues that may require the intervention of a specialist service; and

•

a comprehensive range of specialist services that target clients whose alcohol and other drug problems are complex in
their presentation and are unable to be managed by primary service providers. The services provided offer an expanded
range of options for the ongoing management of these complex cases within an integrated service with the eventual goal
of referral back to primary health care setting.
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Contact
Mount Lawley

Contact Information

7 Field Street
Mt Lawley WA 6050

Alcohol and Drug Information Service
Telephone:

(08) 9442 5000

Freecall:

1800198024

TIS:

(08) 9131 450

Parent Drug Information Service
Telephone:

(08) 9371 1844

Freecall:

1800653203

TIS:

(08) 9131 450

Telephone:

(08) 9370 0333

Fax:

(08) 9272 6605

E-Mail:

nextstep@health.wa.gov.au

For the following services:
Clinical Education and Training
Library Services
General Office and Business Services

Opiate Overdose Prevention Strategy
Telephone:

(08) 9370 0363

Fax:

(08) 9272 6605

Methadone Treatment
32 Moore Street
East Perth WA 6004
Telephone:

(08) 9219 1919

Fax:

(08) 9221 3089

Specialist Outpatient Services
32 Moore Street
East Perth WA 6004
Telephone:

(08) 9219 1919

Fax:

(08) 9221 3089

Detoxification Services
32 Moore Street
East Perth WA 6004
Telephone:

(08) 9219 1919

Fax:

(08) 9221 3089

Fremantle Clinic
33 Quarry Street
Fremantle WA 6160
Telephone:

(08) 9430 5966

Fax:

(08) 9335 3071
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Appendix Two

HCARe
Health Care and Related Information Technology

Abbreviations and Glossary
HDWA
Health Department of Western Australia

ADIS
Alcohol and Drug Information Service

HIV
Human Immunodeficiency Virus

AIDS
Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

HRIS
Human Resources Information System

AOD
IT

Alcohol and Other Drugs

Information Technology

BBV
LAN

Blood Borne Viruses

Local Area Network

BIOS
Next Step

Basic InpuVOutput System

Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services

CAS
NCETA

Clinical Advisory Service

National Centre for Education and Training on Addiction

CBMP
Community Based Methadone Program

NHMRC
National Health & Medical Research Council

CMIS
Client Management Information System

OOPS
Opiate Overdose Prevention Strategy

CSA
PDIS

Civil Service Association

Parent Drug Information Service

CEIDA
Centre for Education & Information on Drugs and Alcohol

PTSN
Parent Telephone Support Network

DEET
Department of Employment, Education and Training

RCV
Replacement Capital Value

EBPU
Evidence-Based Practice Unit

TIS
Telephone Interpreter Service

EEO
Equal Employment Opportunity

UWA
University of Western Australia

FOI
Freedom of Information

WAN
Wide Area Network

FTE
Full Time Equivalent

GPs
General Practitioners

GST
Goods and Services Tax
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Ng, C., Bartu, A., & Sang, D. (1999). Alcohol and drug use
among the Vietnamese in Westem Australia: Health risks

Publications

and service use. Perth: Edith Cowan University.

Conference Papers/Proceedings
Bartu, A. (Ed.) (2000). Pro'Ceedings 14th Mandurah

Internal Publications/Resources

Addiction Symposium. Mandurah Addiction Symposium

Clinical Research and Policy Development Directorate.

February, 9-10. Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol
; Services.

(1999). Naltrexone treatment at Next Step: Client
information booklet. Perth: Next Step Specialist Drug and
Alcohol Services.

Bartu, A., Sharp, J., McDonald, S., & Evans, S. (2000).
A preventative intervention for illicit drug using mothers and

Clinical Research and Policy Development Directorate.

their infants. Paper presented at the IMPACT day of the

(1999). Naltrexone information resource. Perth: Next Step

Perinatal Society of Australia and New Zealand Congress.

Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services.

Brisbane March, 12-15.

Clinical Research and Policy Development Directorate.

Fetherston, J. (2000). Portraits of overdose. Paper

(2000). Investigating methadone withdrawal. Perth: Next

presented at the 14th Mandurah Addiction Symposium,

Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services.

February 9-10.

Clinical Research and Policy Development Directorate.

Hancock, L. & Shand, D. (1999). Development of a brief

(2000). Clinical Trials: guide for clients interested in

intervention for adult cannabis users: Eliminating

participating in clinical trials. Perth: Next Step Specialist

"guesswork" through a conSUltative process. Paper

Drug and Alcohol Services.

presented at the APSAD Conference, Canberra,
November 8-10.

Directorates of Clinical Services and Education and
Research. (2000). Buprenorphine: Inhouse resource

Marinovich, L. (1999). The role of GPs and pharmacists in

material. Perth: Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol

the Community Based Methadone Program. Paper

Services.

presented at the APSAD Conference, Canberra, November
8-10.

Popescu, A. & Kollankandy, S. (2000). Library and
information services survey. Perth: Next Step Specialist

Sang, D., Ng, C., & Bartu, A. (1999). Responses to
alcohol and other drugs: Views of service providers and the
Vietnamese community. Paper presented at the APSAD
Conference, Canberra, November 8-10.

Drug and Alcohol Services.
Popescu, A., Bartu, A., Evans, L., & Marinovich, L. (2000).
Community Based Methadone Program: Prescriber form
review. Perth: Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol
Services.

Posters
Bartu, A., Sharp, J., McDonald, S., & Evans, S. (2000).
A preventative intervention for illicit drug using mothers and
their infants. Poster presented at the Substance Use in

Popescu, A. & Bartu, A. (2000). Client perceptions of
methadone and residential services. Perth: Next Step
Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services.

Pregnancy Conference Brisbane, March 16.
Popescu, A. & Bartu, A. (2000). Follow-up study of clients
Emst, L. (2000). Investigating methadone withdrawal using
buprenorphine. Poster session at the 14th Mandurah

of residential services. Perth: Next Step Specialist Drug
and Alcohol Services.

Addiction Symposium, February 9-10.
Unwin, E. & Bartu, A. (1999). Summary of the Alcohol and
Marinovich, L. (2000). Pride and prejudice. Poster session
at the 14th Mandurah Addiction Symposium, February 9-10.

External Publications/Reports

Drug Authority's treatment data from the McDonnel
Douglas database 1974-1988. Perth: Next Step Specialist
Drug and Alcohol Services.

Fetherstone, J. (1999). Naltrexone in the treatment of drug
dependence: A review of the literature. Perth: Next Step
Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services.
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Workshop/Seminar Presentations

Next Step.' (2000). Smorgasbord of Drug Use-

Corry, A., Ernst, L., Hancock, L. & Fetherston, J.

Short Course. Perth: Next Step.

Novernber, 1999. Clinical trials: What's happening?
Presented as a Next Step Directorate of Education and
Training Lunch Time Seminar. Mount Lawley.
Hancock, L. & Shand, D. (2000). Developing a brief
intervention for adult cannabis users. Presented at the
14th Mandurah Addiction Symposium, February 9-10.
Hancock, L. & Poller, M. May, 2000. Cannabis brief
intervention: What's happening? Presented as the
inaugural Next Step, East Perth Lunchtime Seminars.

Next Step. (2000). Risk Taking and Reducing Drug related
Harrn - Short Course. Perth: Next Step.
Browne, M., Little, G., Towers, T, Heath, T., and Jaggard,
S. (2000). In Touch

School Drug Managernent Program.

Perth: Next Step.
Little, G. and Jaggard, S. (2000). Self-Directed Learning
Workbook for Understanding Drug Use CD-ROM.
Perth: Next Step.

Book Chapters

Bartu, A. (2000). Detoxification. In Cooper, D. B. (Ed.)
Alcohol Use. pp. 173-184, Oxford: Radcliffe Medical Press.
Bartu, A. (2000). Treatrnent and therapeutic interventions.
In Cooper, D. B. (Ed.) Alcohol Use. pp. 185-194. Oxford:
Radcliffe Medical Press.
Clinical Education and Training

Next Step. (2000). Understanding Psychoactive Drug Use
- CHCAOD1A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Orientation to the Alcohol and Other
Drugs Sector - CHCAOD2A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Engaging Clients - CHCAOD3A.
Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Supporting People with Alcohol and
Other Drug Issues - CHCAOD4A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Getting the Story - CHCAOD5A.
Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Working with Clients who are
Intoxicated - CHCAOD6A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Harm Reduction and Injecting
CHCAOD7A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Working with Clients who have Alcohol
and Other Drug Issues - CHCAOD8A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Detoxification and Withdrawal
CHCAOD9A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Communication and Helping Skills 1 CHCCOM1A. Perth: Next Step.
Next Step. (2000). Communication and Helping Skills 2 CHCCOM2A. Perth: Next Step.
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Other Legislation
•

Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951

•

Official Corruption Commission Act 1988

•

Disability Services Act 1993

•

Freedom of Information Act 1992

•

Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994

•

Health Services (Quality Improvement) Regulations

Compliance with Legislation
Enabling Legislation.
The administration of Next Step Specialist Drug and
Alcohol Services is established as set out in the Alcohol
and Drug Authority Act 1974.
Legislation Administered

1995

Next Step Specialist Drug and Alcohol Services does not
administer legislation.

The following written laws also impact on Next Step's
activities:

Legislation Impacting on Office Activities
KEY LEGISLATION:

•

Constitution Act 1889 and Constitution Acts
Amendments Act 1889

•

Alcohol and Drug Authority Act 1974

•

Treasurer's Advance Authorisation

•

Mental Health Act 1996

•

Supply, Loan and Appropriation Acts

•

Poisons Act 1964

•

Financial Agreement Act 1928

•

Health Act 1911

•

Interpretation Act 1984

Financial Legislation
•

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

•

Corporation (Western Australia) Act 1990 (Corporations
Law)

•

State Supply Commission Act 1991

•

A New Tax System Act 1999

Administration/Human Resources Legislation
•

Public Sector Management Act 1994

•

Workplace Agreements Act 1993

•

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 193

•

Salaries and Wages Act 1975

•

Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972

•

Equal Opportunity Act 1984

•

Government Superannuation Act 1987

•

Superannuation and Family Benefits Act 1938

•

Occupational Health and Safety Act 1984

•

Workers' Compensation and (Rehabilitation) Assistance
Act 1981

I'SI"

•

Industrial Relations Act 1979 (Employment Acts)

•

Workplace Relations Act 1996 (Commonwealth)

Nextb-Step~
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